
 
 

 
eastsussex.gov.uk 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY 
 
DECISIONS to be made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability, Councillor Bob Standley 
 
MONDAY, 4 NOVEMBER 2024 AT 3.30 PM  
 
REMOTE MEETING VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
1.   Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 7 October 2024  (Pages 3 - 6) 

 
2.   Disclosures of interests   

Disclosure by all Members present of personal interests in matters on the Agenda, the 
nature of any interest and whether the Member regards the interest as prejudicial under 
the terms of the Code of Conduct 
 

3.   Urgent items   
Notification of items which the Lead Member considers to be urgent and propose to 
take at the end of the appropriate part of the Agenda 
 

4.   Future operation of Buzz Active, Outdoor Activities provision in East Sussex  (Pages 7 - 
10) 
Report by the Director of Children's Services  
 

5.   Any non-exempt urgent items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

6.   Exclusion of the Public and Press   
To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting for the remaining agenda 
item on the grounds that if the public and press were present there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that 
information).  
 

7.   Future operation of Buzz Active, Outdoor Activities provision in East Sussex - Exempt 
Information  (Pages 11 - 14) 
Report by the Director of Children's Services  
 

8.   Any other exempt items previously notified under agenda item 3   
 

 
 
 
PHILIP BAKER 
Deputy Chief Executive   
County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent 
LEWES BN7 1UE 25 October 2024 
 
Contact Sophie Webb, Interim Senior Governance and Democracy Officer,  
01273 337495 
Email: Sophie.Webb@eastsussex.gov.uk  
 



 

NOTE: As part of the County Council’s drive to increase accessibility to its public meetings, this 
meeting will be broadcast live on its website. The live broadcast is accessible at: 
www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default 
 
 

http://www.eastsussex.gov.uk/yourcouncil/webcasts/default.htm


 

 

 

 

LEAD MEMBER FOR EDUCATION AND INCLUSION, SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY 

 

DECISIONS made by the Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special Educational 
Needs and Disability, Councillor Bob Standley, on 7 October 2024 at Remote Meeting via 
Microsoft Teams  

 

 

Councillor Field spoke on item 4 (see minute 26) 

Councillor Shuttleworth spoke on item 5 (see minute 27) 

 

22. DECISIONS MADE BY THE LEAD CABINET MEMBER ON 10 SEPTEMBER 2024  

 

22.1 The Lead Member approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
September 2024. 

 

23. DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS  

 

23.1 There were none. 

 

24. URGENT ITEMS  

 

24.1 There were none. 

 

25. REPORTS  

 

25.1 Reports referred to in the minutes below are contained in the minute book. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



 

 

 

 

26. ADMISSION ARRANGEMENTS FOR EAST SUSSEX SCHOOLS 2026-27 
(PERMISSION TO CONSULT)  

 

26.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children's Services. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
26.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) agree to consult on the proposed admission arrangements for Community and Voluntary 
Controlled (VC) schools for the 2026-27 academic year as set out in Appendix 1 of the report; 
 
2) note that there are no proposed changes to the admission arrangements; 
 
3) agree to consult on the proposed published admission numbers (PANs) for Community and 
VC schools for 2026-27, specifically the proposed PAN reductions at Motcombe and Pashley 
Down Infant schools, Wadhurst CE Primary School and Nursery and possibly others; and 
 
4) agree to consult on the proposed co-ordinated schemes of admissions as set out in 
Appendices 3-6 of the report. 
 
REASONS 
 
26.3 The Council is required by law to consult on its admission arrangements every 7 years, 
or sooner if any changes to those arrangements are proposed for schools for which it is the 
admission authority.  
 
26.4 The results of the consultation will be reported back to the Lead Member after the 
consultation period closes in January 2024 with recommendations for amendments as 
necessary resulting from comments received. Final admission arrangements must be 
determined by 28 February 2025 and published by 15 March 2025 in line with statutory 
deadlines. 

 

27. HOUSEHOLD SUPPORT FUND 2024  

 

27.1 The Lead Member considered a report by the Director of Children's Services. 
 
DECISIONS 
 
27.2 The Lead Member RESOLVED to: 
 
1) Approve the proposed plan for the use of funding from the Household Support Fund to 
provide support to households with children in East Sussex as set out in the report; and 
 
2) Delegate to the Director of Children’s Services authority to implement the plan, in 
collaboration with the Director of Adult Social Care and Health. 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

REASONS 
 
27.3 The announcement of an extension to the Household Support Fund scheme provides an 
opportunity to support households with children, households with pensioners, households with a 
disabled person and other vulnerable households within East Sussex who are experiencing 
financial challenges and will be welcomed by partners. 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Report to: Lead Member for Education and Inclusion, Special 

Educational Needs and Disability 
 
Date:   4 November 2024 
 
By:   Director of Children’s Services  
 
Title of report: Future operation of Buzz Active, Outdoor Activities 

provision in East Sussex 
 
Purpose of report: To seek approval to undertake a sale / transfer of entity 

process to identify a viable alternative provider to operate 
Buzz Active in place of the Council 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Lead Member is recommended to:  

1) Approve the proposal to seek an alternative provider to operate Buzz 
Active; 

2) Agree that, provided a suitable alternative provider can be identified, 
Buzz Active will be transferred through either a sale or transfer of 
entity;  

3) Delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to determine 
the most suitable third party to take over Buzz Active, agree the terms 
of any sale or transfer and to authorise the Council entering into such 
legal agreements as are necessary to give effect to the sale or transfer 
of Buzz Active; and 

4) Delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to carry out all 
other actions necessary to give effect to the recommendations in this 
report. 

 

1 Background 

1.1  Buzz Active, which sits within the Children’s Services department, is a Council 
run service that offers outdoor activities, to children and adults, supporting around 
20,000 visits per year. Buzz Active specialises in sail sports, paddle sports and a 
range of land-based activities, including target sports, high ropes and bush craft.  

1.2 Buzz Active operates out of 3 activity centres, offering day visit and residential 
activity provision in beautiful settings across East Sussex. The centres are located in 
Eastbourne, Hailsham and Cuckmere Haven, and have a suite of activity equipment to 
suit a wide range of user needs, including specialist, inclusive equipment, specifically 
designed to cater for those with additional needs and requirements.  

1.3 The activity offers available at these 3 sites are well placed for schools and 
educational groups wanting to offer their students options for curriculum linked 
learning, with the land based offer able to run all year round. Accredited training and 
the opportunity for children and young people to learn, build on their skills and excel in 
sailing and other water sports makes both the Cuckmere and Eastbourne sites 
popular for a wide range of schools. Memberships, courses and day activities also 
make the centres popular with adults as well as children and young people. 

1.4 More recently, Buzz Active has been providing residential camping stays which 
make use of all 3 activity centres. These have been growing in popularity, particularly 
for transition or Year 6 summer term events, with class or whole year groups being 
successfully catered for. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

 

1.5  Following positive government funding opportunities post-Covid in 2021/22 
and 2022/23, Buzz Active has been able to offer an inclusive range of activities for 
children, young people and their families (including those with Special Educational 
Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and the wider community) to enjoy year-round, 
including a fully inclusive high ropes and climbing structure. A local special school has 
signed up to a 5-day, year-long programme of activities for all year groups within their 
care.  

1.6  Buzz Active is also a core provider of the Holiday Activity and Food (HAF) 
provision for East Sussex – offering fantastic activities for some of East Sussex’s most 
vulnerable children, including forging strong working relationships with early help, 
social care and looked after children teams within the Children’s Services department.  
 

2 Supporting information 

2.1 Whilst the Council runs the services, the sites where Buzz Active are located 
are owned by other parties. The Council has arrangements in place to use each of the 
3 sites, and benefits from strong collaborative working arrangements with the land 
owners (Eastbourne Borough Council, for the Eastbourne Parade site, South Downs 
National Park for Cuckmere Haven and Eastbourne Scouts for Bushy Wood in 
Hailsham). 

2.2  The Buzz Active service complements the Council’s priority outcomes of 
keeping vulnerable people safe and driving sustainable economic growth. It provides 
opportunities for children of all ages, abilities and backgrounds to experience the 
benefits of taking part in outdoor sport and activities. This includes benefits to mental 
and physical wellbeing and individual, social and community development. The 
service also promotes local employment and has fostered excellent links with schools 
within the county. 

2.3  The Council, like all other local authorities, is facing significant financial 
pressures. Currently the expenditure required to maintain Buzz Active is around 
£100,000 per annum.  As Buzz Active is not a statutory service, the Council has taken 
the opportunity to explore options to run Buzz Active differently to ensure a 
sustainable and financially viable future for this valued service whilst protecting the 
Council from increasing operational costs and cost uncertainty.   

2.4 The ability to adapt quickly, embrace technology and innovation, whilst moving 
with a rapidly changing and trend led market is key to Buzz Active’s continued 
success. It is important that the service can continue to thrive and maximise the 
opportunity for sustainability and growth. A different operating model could provide 
more scope for accessing other sources of funding and investment so that it can 
continue to grow and support the local community and wider county in the provision of 
outdoor adventure and water sport activities. 
 
2.5 To support an options appraisal, the Council undertook a ‘test the market’ 
engagement event on 11 September 2024 to review potential levels of interest from 
external operators to operate the Buzz Active service. Attendees were asked their 
views on different delivery models, including the potential sale of Buzz Active as well 
as a concession contract model (i.e. where an external provider runs Buzz Active and 
takes on all the operating costs and risk in exchange for retaining any income derived 
from doing so).   

2.6  The Council considers it may be more economically viable for alternative 
providers to run Buzz Active. This is because external providers may have more 
flexibility around pay and/or terms and conditions and support services relevant to 
Buzz Active (for example transport and catering infrastructure for the service 
provision), which the Council does not.  

 

Page 8



 

 

2.7  Due to the feedback from the initial ‘test the market’ event, and the level of 
interest from potentially viable operators, it is recommended that the Council explores 
further the option of selling or transferring Buzz Active to an alternative provider. This 
will involve a robust process where the Buzz Active service will be advertised for sale. 
It is anticipated that advertising the opportunity on the open market may generate 
further interest beyond those operators that attended the initial event in September.  

2.8 The sale process will involve carefully reviewing the viability of interested 
providers as well as assessing their offer in terms of maintaining the current level of 
provision and meeting the aims and ethos of Buzz Active, which include: 

 To provide inclusive land and water based provision to the community; 

 To enable pricing to be as competitive as possible or offer alternatives to 
promote accessibility for all;  

 To continue the Council’s Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) 
inclusive offers, including further growth in alternative provision style offers; 

 To support the most vulnerable children and young people in the community 
(for example, by continuing to play a lead role in the government funded 
Holiday Activity and Fun (HAF) programmes or similar); 

 To maintain a strong teaching base for water sports; 

 To develop and grow workforce from within the community. 

These aims were also shared at the initial ‘test the market’ event in September.  

2.9 If the Lead Member agrees the recommendations set out in the report, the 
proposed timeline for next steps would be as follows: 

 Early November 2024 - Launch Sale or Transfer of Entity Process; 

 Early December 2024 - Review submissions and determine potential 
alternative provider; 

 January – April/June 2025 – Agree terms of sale / transfer and work towards 
implementation and transition to a new provider. 

  
 

3. Conclusion and reasons for recommendations  

3.1    Given the financial pressures the Council is facing, it is necessary for 
departments to review all of their expenditure, especially spending on non-statutory 
services. The Buzz Active service, whilst non-statutory, makes a positive contribution 
to the residents of East Sussex and the Council has therefore explored ways to ensure 
the continuation of this valuable service in the future. It is considered that the best way 
to secure the ongoing provision of these outdoor activities is to explore different delivery 
models; and the Lead Member is therefore recommended to approve the proposal that 
the Council seeks an alternative provider to operate Buzz Active in the future. 

3.2 Following feedback at the ‘test the market’ event in September, the route likely 
to be most effective in achieving this is considered to be through a sale or transfer of 
entity and the Lead Member is therefore recommended to agree that, provided a 
suitable alternative provider can be identified, this is the route the Council takes. This 
will enable the service to continue to grow and adapt appropriately to support the local 
community and wider county in the provision of outdoor adventure and water sport 
activities outside of the Council.  

3.3  To facilitate this process, the Lead Member is recommended to delegate 
authority to the Director of Children’s Services to determine the most suitable third party 
to take over Buzz Active, agree the terms of any sale or transfer and to authorise the 
Council entering into such legal agreements as are necessary to give effect to the sale 
or transfer of Buzz Active. In addition, it is recommended that the Lead Member 
delegate authority to the Director of Children’s Services to carry out all other actions 
necessary to give effect to the recommendations in this report. 

 

Page 9



 

 

CAROLYN FAIR 
Director of Children’s Services  

 

 

Contact Officer: Michelle Ingham  
Tel. No. 01273 482550 
Email: michelle.ingham@eastsussex.gov.uk 

 
 
 
LOCAL MEMBERS 

Councillors Bennett, Holt and Stephen Shing 

 

 

Page 10

mailto:michelle.ingham@eastsussex.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Appendix 1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Decisions made by the Lead Cabinet Member on 7 October 2024
	4 Future operation of Buzz Active, Outdoor Activities provision in East Sussex
	7 Future operation of Buzz Active, Outdoor Activities provision in East Sussex - Exempt Information
	Appendix 1


